Lafayette, Louisiana

Financial Report Year Ended June 30, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report	1-2
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement of Financial Position	3
Statement of Activities	4
Statement of Functional Expenses	5
Statement of Cash Flows	6
Notes to Financial Statements	7-17
INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE	18
Independent Auditor's report on Internal Control Over Financial	
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an	
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with	
Government Auditing Standards	19-20
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs	21
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings	22
Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Findings	23



2000 Kaliste Saloom Road, Suite 300 Lafayette, LA 70508

отнек Locations: Eunice Morgan City Abbeville 337-232-3312337-237-3614

DSFCPAS.COM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc. Lafayette, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc. (a nonprofit corporation) which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc. as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses on page 5 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated September 14, 2021, on our consideration of Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Darnall, Sikes & Frederick

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants

Lafayette, Louisiana September 14, 2021

Statement of Financial Position June 30, 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 319,473
Accounts receivable	121,521
Grants receivable	532,620
Prepaid expenses	46,685
Total current assets	1,020,299
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT	
Art work	78,000
Furniture and equipment	60,605
	138,605
Less: accumulated depreciation	(44,444)
Net property and equipment	94,161
OTHER ASSETS	
Investments, without donor restrictions	78,175
Investments, with donor restrictions	750,000
T (1 d	828,175
Total other assets	020,173
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 1,942,635
TOTAL ASSETS	
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS	
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES	<u>\$ 1,942,635</u>
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable	\$ 1,942,635 \$ 35,930
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable Accrued payroll liabilities	\$ 1.942.635 \$ 35,930 19,615
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable Accrued payroll liabilities Accrued expenses	\$ 1.942,635 \$ 35,930 19,615 6,491
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable Accrued payroll liabilities Accrued expenses Deferred revenue	\$ 1.942.635 \$ 35,930 19,615 6,491 391,468
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable Accrued payroll liabilities Accrued expenses Deferred revenue Total current liabilities	\$ 1.942,635 \$ 35,930 19,615 6,491 391,468 453,504
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable Accrued payroll liabilities Accrued expenses Deferred revenue Total current liabilities Total liabilities	\$ 1.942,635 \$ 35,930 19,615 6,491 391,468 453,504
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable Accrued payroll liabilities Accrued expenses Deferred revenue Total current liabilities Total liabilities NET ASSETS	\$ 1,942,635 \$ 35,930 19,615 6,491 391,468 453,504
TOTAL ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable Accrued payroll liabilities Accrued expenses Deferred revenue Total current liabilities Total liabilities NET ASSETS Without donor restrictions	\$ 1.942,635 \$ 35,930 19,615 6,491 391,468 453,504 453,504 709,705

Statement of Activities Year Ended June 30, 2021

	Without Donor Restrictions		With Donor Restrictions		Total
Revenue:		our le tions	100	ou ic tions	 10111
Grants:					
Direct public grants	\$	10,158	\$	_	\$ 10,158
Government grants		443,692		<u> </u>	443,692
Total grants		453,850		-	453,850
Contributions and support:					
Direct public support		102,429		-	102,429
Direct sponsorship support		287,921		-	287,921
Donated goods and services		168,945		-	168,945
Government contracts		765,751		-	765,751
Program income		64,021		-	64,021
Rental income		118,588		-	118,588
Special events		20,310		-	20,310
Concession sales		24,367		_	24,367
Pass-through income		168,726		17,000	185,726
Other and miscellaneous		13,021		-	13,021
Net investment gain		112,841			112,841
Total contributions and revenue		1,846,920		17,000	 1,863,920
Total revenue		2,300,770		17,000	2,317,770
Expenses:					
Program services		852,188		2,574	854,762
Administrative		734,456		<u>-</u>	 734,456
Total expenses		1,586,644		2,574	 1,589,218
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS		714,126		14,426	728,552
NET ASSETS, beginning		(4,421)		765,000	 760,579
NET ASSETS, ending	\$	709,705	\$	779,426	\$ 1,489,131

Statement of Functional Expenses Year Ended June 30, 2021

PROGRAM SERVICES

			Community				General	
	Fundraising	Rentals	Development	Education	Exhibits	Programming	and Admin	Total
Advertising	\$ 573	\$ 125	\$ 25	\$ 873	\$ 227	\$ 1,001	\$ 4	\$ 2,828
Artist fees	900	-	300	21,343	11,630	25,000	-	59,173
Depreciation expense	501	-	370	370	327	2,596	4,146	8,310
Dues and subscriptions	-	2,803	-	506	_	2,437	4,131	9,877
Donated goods and services	106	488	-	1,087	650	4,152	162,462	168,945
Facilities and equipment	2,132	3,405	-	9,460	4,435	49,596	145,455	214,483
Food and beverages	1,761	-	125	1,087	608	1,799	6,727	12,107
Grant programs	-	-	81,148	-	_	-	-	81,148
Insurance	-	_	-	-	3,253	-	15,114	18,367
Interest expense	-	_	-	-	_	-	867	867
Licenses, fees and penalties	2,241	1,686	9	948	207	2,883	5,344	13,318
Pass-through sales and payments	2,835	59,010	-	769	718	23,270	3,548	90,150
Postage	893	7	63	264	1,394	755	780	4,156
Printing	5,846	55	172	950	5,906	914	1,144	14,987
Professional and contract services	4,880	20,049	-	3,973	13,470	31,092	34,922	108,386
Salaries, benefits and payroll taxes	81,123	31,446	86,499	87,976	50,478	86,127	275,001	698,650
Supplies	941	_	8	3,560	460	913	2,912	8,794
Telephone	-	_	-	-	_	697	22,825	23,522
Travel and meetings	-	-	-	511	168	1,397	315	2,391
Utilities			_		<u> </u>		48,759	48,759
	\$ 104,732	<u>\$119,074</u>	<u>\$ 168,719</u>	<u>\$ 133,677</u>	<u>\$ 93,931</u>	\$ 234,629	\$ 734,456	\$1,589,218

See independent auditor's report and notes to financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows Year Ended June 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	
Increase in net assets	\$ 728,552
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets	
to net cash provided in operating activities:	
Depreciation expense	8,310
Investment activities	(112,731)
(Increase) decrease in:	
Accounts receivable	(76,230)
Grants receivable	(516,370)
Prepaid expenses	(11,610)
Increase (decrease) in:	
Accounts payable	(19,310)
Accrued payroll liabilities	(2,285)
Accrued expenses	(11)
Deferred revenue	135,355
Net cash provided by operating activities	133,670
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	
Transfer of assets to/from endowment fund	36,000
Net cash provided by investing activities	36,000
Net increase in cash	169,670
CASH, beginning of year	149,803
CASH, end of year	<u>\$ 319,473</u>
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:	
Interest paid	\$ 867

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc. (the Organization) is a non-profit corporation that serves an eight-parish region of Southwestern Louisiana, known collectively as Acadiana. The Organization serves a pivotal role in promoting the arts of the eight-parish service area, enhancing the organizational development of the various cultural organizations, and creating new programs, projects, and opportunities for the arts to develop in southwest Louisiana. Serving as cultural environmentalists, the Organization seeks to foster and nurture an atmosphere where the arts and artists can flourish locally.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions.

<u>Net assets without donor restrictions</u> – Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations or grantor-imposed restrictions.

<u>Net assets with donor restrictions</u> — Net assets with donor restrictions or resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that are restricted by a donor for use for a particular purpose or in a particular future period. Other restrictions may be perpetual in nature, such as those that are restricted by a donor that the resources be maintained in perpetuity.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Public Support and Revenue

Grants and other contributions of cash and other assets are reported as net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions is reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the Statement of Activities as "Net Assets Released from Restrictions." Restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restrictions.

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes revenue when services are performed. Prior to the service date, all collections are recorded as deferred revenue on the statement of financial position. After the concert is performed or once the grant stipulations are fulfilled, the Organization realizes and records the revenue. In the event any of the productions are not presented, the advance ticket collections for that concert will be available for refund to the ticket holders. At June 30, 2021, the Organization had deferred revenue of \$391,468.

Donated Assets and Services

Contributions of donated noncash assets are recorded at their fair values in the period received. Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets or that require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at their fair values in the period received. For the year ended June 30, 2021, \$162,000 of donated facilities rent and \$6,945 of professional service costs are reflected in the statement of functional expenses and the statement of activities.

No amounts have been reflected on the statements for volunteer services because no objective basis is available to measure the value of such services. Nevertheless, a substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in the Organization's program services and its fundraising activities.

Income Taxes

The Organization qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore has no provision for federal income taxes. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the code. It is also exempt from Louisiana income tax. However, should the Organization engage in activities unrelated to its exempt purpose, taxable income could result. The Organization had no material unrelated business income for the fiscal year under audit.

Change in Accounting Principle

FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, "Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities" in 2016. The ASU addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment return. The Organization adopted ASU 2016-14 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The adoption of ASU 2016-14 had no impact on the Organization's total net assets.

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents exclude permanently restricted cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable is primarily made up of government grants. The financial statements for the Organization do not contain an allowance for uncollectible receivables because management believes all amounts will be collected. However, if management becomes aware of information that would change its assessment about the collectability of any receivable, management would write off the receivable as bad debt at that time.

Investments

The Organization has adopted FASB ASC Subtopic 958-320, "Not-for-Profit Entities-Investments-Debt and Equity Securities." Under FASB ASC Subtopic 958-320, investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are reported at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets. Investment income and gains restricted by a donor are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions are met (either by passage of time or by use) in the reporting period in which the income and gains are recognized.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair value accounting standards define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, outline a fair value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Level 1 or 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity's own assumptions about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical investments that the investment manager has the ability to access at the measurement date.
- Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the investment, either directly or indirectly.
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the investment.

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Organization's statement of financial position includes the following financial instruments that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

• Investments in mutual funds and common stock are considered Level 1 assets and are reported at fair value based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the measurement date.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost for assets purchased and at fair value at the date of donation for contributed assets. Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair market value and are reported as unrestricted unless the donor has restricted the donated assets for a specific purpose. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from 5 to 10 years. All acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of \$1,000 are capitalized, while maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was \$2,828 for the year ended June 30, 2021. The Organization also received an additional \$0 of donated advertising services which are shown as donated goods and services on the statement of functional expenses.

Compensated Absences

The obligation of accumulated paid time off is recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Activities. Employees of the Organization are entitled to paid time off, depending on job classification, length of service, and other factors. The annual leave varies from 144 to 224 hours per fiscal year, based on the employee's length of service. Upon separation, employees are paid for any unused paid time off at the employee's current rate of pay. Compensated absences payable was \$18,149 for the year ended June 30, 2021, and is included in accrued payroll liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Uses of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 14, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 RECEIVABLES

As of June 30, 2021, grants receivable consisted of the following:

Louisiana Division of the Arts	\$ 13,980
Small Business Administration	 518,640
	\$ 532,620

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of changes in property and equipment is as follows:

	Balance			Balance
	July 1,			June 30,
	2020	Additions	Disposals	2021
Artwork Furniture and equipment Total	\$ 78,000 <u>60,605</u> 138,605	\$ - - -	\$ - - -	\$ 78,000 <u>60,605</u> <u>138,605</u>
Accumulated depreciation	(36,134)	(8,310)	_	(44,444)
Property and equipment, net	<u>\$ 102,471</u>	<u>\$ (8,310)</u>	<u>\$ -</u>	<u>\$ 94,161</u>

Depreciation expense was \$8,310 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS

Investment securities are carried at fair value based on quoted prices in active markets (all Level 1 Measurements) and consist of the following at June 30, 2021:

		Fair	Unrealized
	Cost	Value	Appreciation
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 10,006	\$ 10,006	\$ -
Marketable equity securities	763,224	818,169	54,945
	\$ 773,230	\$ 828,175	\$ 54,945

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2021:

	Without Donor		With I	Oonor		
	Res	strictions	Restrictions		Total	
Interest and dividends	\$	34,476	\$	-	\$	34,476
Realized gains		21,458		-		21,458
Unrealized gains		62,984		-		62,984
Advisory fees		(6,077)		_		(6,077)
	<u>\$</u>	112,841	\$	<u> </u>	\$	112,841

NOTE 5 INVESTMENTS – DONOR-DESIGNATED ENDOWMENTS

The Organization's endowment consists of funds that are to be used to support the mission of the Organization. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Per the donation agreement, the historical dollar amount of the endowment fund is to be preserved. The Organization classifies, as net assets with donor restrictions, the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment and the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure. Under the Organization's spending policy, in the absence of donor restrictions, the net appreciation on a donor-restricted endowment fund is spendable. The donors have not placed restrictions on the use of investment income or net appreciation resulting from the donor-restricted endowment fund. Appropriations for expenditures from endowment funds are to be approved by the Board of Directors.

Interpretation of Relevant Law. The Board of Directors of the Organization has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as net assets with donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 5 INVESTMENTS – DONOR-DESIGNATED ENDOWMENTS (CONTINUED)

permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is classified as net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA.

Interpretation of Relevant Law (continued). In accordance with SPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment fund: (1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the Organization, and (7) the Organization's investment policies.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies. The Organization has adopted an investment policy, approved by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment fund while also seeking to maintain the purchasing power of these endowment assets over the long-term. Endowment assets are invested in a well-diverse asset mix, which includes equity and debt securities, that is intended to result in a consistent inflation-protected rate of return. Investment risk is measured in terms of the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocation between asset classes and strategies are managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable levels of risk.

Endowment net asset composition as of June 30, 2021 was as follows:

			Total Net
	Without Donor	With Donor	Endowment
	Restrictions	Restrictions	Assets
Donor-restricted endowment funds	<u>\$ 78,175</u>	\$ 750,000	<u>\$ 828,175</u>

Changes in endowment net assets as of June 30, 2021 were as follows:

					T	otal Net
	Without Donor		With Donor		En	dowment
	Restrictions		Restrictions			Assets
Endowment net assets, beginning of year	\$	1,444	\$	750,000	\$	751,444
Investment income		55,824		-		55,824
Net appreciation		62,984		-		62,984
Amounts appropriated for expenditure		(42,077)				(42,077)
Endowment net assets, end of year	\$	78,175	\$	750,000		828,175

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 6 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

The Organization has assets which are restricted in their application by virtue of the donor's intention or commitments already entered into by the Organization. These net assets are to be held in perpetuity and the earnings are to be used for the programs of the Organization. Details on the restricted balances are set out below:

James D. Moncus Family Foundation	\$ 750,000
Jean Breaux Award Fund	 29,426
	\$ 779,426

NOTE 7 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

On April 6, 2020 and March 16, 2021, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amounts of \$149,003 and \$153,062 under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), provides for loans to qualifying business for amount up to 2.5 time the average monthly payroll of the qualifying business. The loans are forgivable as long as the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible expenditures within an eight to twenty-four week period. Eligible expenditures include payroll, employee benefits, rent, and utilities. The amount of loan forgiveness can be reduced if the borrower terminates employees or reduces salaries between the eight and twenty-four week period. The unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is payable over two to five years at an interest rate of 1%.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization met all of the conditions of the first PPP disbursement of \$149,003 and was fully forgiven by the Small Business Administration on March 23, 2021. The Organization has recorded grant revenue equal to the qualifying expenses of \$149,003 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization met substantially all of the conditions of the second PPP disbursement of \$153,062 and recorded grant revenue equal to the qualifying expenses of \$134,729 incurred through June 30, 2021. The remaining \$18,333 is recorded as deferred revenue within the Statement of Financial Position and will be recorded as grant revenue for the year ended June 30, 2022.

NOTE 8 SHUTTERED VENUE OPERATORS GRANT

On July 19, 2021 the Organization was awarded a Shuttered Venue Operators Grant of \$518,640 as part of the Economic Aid to Hard-Hit Small Businesses, Nonprofits, and Venues Act, and amended by the American Rescue Plan Act. The grant covers a wide range of eligible expenses and is retroactively applied to eligible expenses beginning March 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization met substantially all of the conditions of the grant and recorded grant revenue equal to the qualifying expenses of \$382,372. The remaining \$136,268 is recorded as deferred revenue within the Statement of Financial Position and will be recorded as grant revenue for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 9 DONATED SERVICES AND FACILITIES

The Organization received a significant amount of donated services from unpaid volunteers who assist in fundraising and special projects. No amounts have been recognized in the Statement of Activities because the criteria for recognition under SFAS No. 116 has not been satisfied. On December 2, 2003, the Organization executed a lease with the Lafayette Consolidated Government to begin upon occupation of a newly constructed facility. The lease period was ten years with the right to renew for three consecutive periods of five years each. The lease was renewed for an additional five years in December 2013. Under the agreement, the Organization will pay rent at the rate of \$100 per year, as well as be responsible for payment of all insurance and maintenance, heating and cooling and elevator systems. The estimated rental in the amount of \$162,000 has been reflected in the accompanying financial statements as contributions with a like amount shown as donated goods and services.

NOTE 10 FUNDRAISING EXPENSE

Each year, the Organization hosts several fundraising events. Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred. The total fundraising expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was \$104,732, of this amount, \$106 represent in-kind donations.

NOTE 11 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets available for general expenditures, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use as of June 30, 2021:

Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 319,473
Accounts receivable	121,521
Grants receivable	532,620
Prepaid expenses	 46,685
Total financial assets available to meet general	
expenditures over the next twelve months	\$ 1,020,299

NOTE 12 COMPENSATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Directors do not receive any compensation for their services as Directors of the Organization. Directors may be reimbursed for their expenses, if any, incurred in carrying out the purposes of the Organization, provided that such reimbursement does not adversely affect the Organization's qualification under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

NOTE 13 CONCENTRATIONS

The Organization received a substantial portion of its revenues from City, Parish and State grants and contracts. Any substantial change in any of these components could have adverse effects on the Organization's financial condition.

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 14 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances at one financial institution which may, at times, exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits of \$250,000. Management believes the credit risk associated with these deposits is minimal.

NOTE 15 INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Expenses relating to investment revenues, including custodial fees and investment advisory fees, amounted to \$6,077 and have been netted against investment revenues in the accompanying Statement of Activities.

NOTE 16 CONTINGENCIES – GRANT PROGAMS

The Organization participates in federal, state and local grant programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the Organization has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received and the collectability of any related receivable at year end may be impaired. In management's opinion, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing state and local grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies. Any costs that would be disallowed would be recognized in the period agreed upon by the grantor agency and the Organization.

NOTE 17 COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO DIRECTOR

A detail of compensation, benefits, and other payments made to the executive director Samuel Oliver for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Purpose	Amount	
Salary	\$	71,106
Benefits - insurance and retirement		4,480
Paid time off		3,894
Reimbursements		1,031
Total	\$	80,511

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 18 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table summarizes assets measured at fair value by classification within the fair value hierarchy at June 30, 2021:

	Quoted Price in		
	Active Markets for		
	Ident	Identical Assets	
	(I	(Level 1)	
Cash and sweep balances	\$	10,006	
Stocks, options and ETFs		198,570	
Fixed income securities		131,673	
Mutual funds		487,926	
	\$	828,175	

NOTE 19 COVID-19 PANDEMIC

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) was reported to have surfaced in China. The World Health Organization has characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The COVID-19 outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a range of industries. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Organization's operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, and the impact on the Organization's donors, employees, and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the Organization's financial position or results of operations is uncertain.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE



2000 Kaliste Saloom Road, Suite 300 Lafayette, LA 70508

отнег Locations: Eunice Morgan City Abbeville P 337-232-3312F 337-237-3614

DSFCPAS.COM

Independent Auditor's Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc. Lafayette, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors, management, others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. However, Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Darnall, Sikes & Frederick

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants

Lafayette, Louisiana September 14, 2021

Schedules of Findings and Questioned Costs Year Ended June 30, 2021

Part I: Summary of Auditor's Results

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Auditor's Report - Financial Statements

An unmodified opinion has been issued on Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc.'s financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.

<u>Deficiencies and Material Weaknesses in Internal Control – Financial Reporting</u>

No deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements.

Material Noncompliance - Financial Reporting

There were no instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements noted during the audit of the financial statements.

FEDERAL AWARDS

This section is not applicable for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Part II: Findings Relating to an Audit in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

This section is not applicable for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Part III: Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Programs

At June 30, 2021, the Acadiana Center for the Arts, Inc. did not meet the requirements to have a single audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, therefore, this section is not applicable.

Part IV: Management Letter

The auditor did not issue a management letter this year.

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings Year Ended June 30, 2021

This section is not applicable for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Findings Year Ended June 30, 2021

This section is not applicable for the year ended June 30, 2021.